Earth Negotiations Bulle

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Vol. 12 No. 92 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development Monday, 9 November 1998
HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE FOURTH UNFCCC commitments. On implementation of FCCC Articles 4.8 and 4.9, a
CONFERENCE OF THE PARTIES contact group will base its discussion on those begun at the last
6 NOVEMBER 1998 session.

Delegates held regional group consultations in the morning. In theThe President of the COP invited comments on the draft decision
afternoon, the COP plenary considered: reports from the subsidiargn the review of implementation of commitments and of other provi-
bodies; possible decisions under Atrticle 4.2(f); and statements frosions of the Convention (FCCC/CP/1998/L.2). Under the draft deci-
intergovernmental organizations. Contact groups met in the evenirgipn, the COP would decide to defer the review of this matter until
and over the weekend. COP-5. TURKEY reiterated that its current Annex | status is an

anomaly that delays its ratification of the Convention. PAKISTAN
cop PLENARY ) . ] called for the resolution of the issue to allow Turkey to participate in

COP-4 President Maria Julia Alsogaray (Argentina) offered  the process.
condolences to the_ Caribbgan and Latin American countries recently o, the reports of the subsidiary bodies, G-77/CHINA reiterated
devastated by hurricane Mitch. She noted that over the pastyear he importance of technology transfer to developing countries and
floods, fires, droughts and hurricanes have profoundly effected coypsposed the establishment of a technology transfer mechanism. He
tries around the world and suggested that "Mother Nature” was | rge developed country Parties to prioritize the implementation of
reminding delegates that urgent action was needed. EL SALVADGRe convention over economic and political considerations. The
for the CENTRAL AMERICAN GROUP, said these events should piyss|AN FEDERATION requested the subsidiary body chairs to
remind all participants of their vulnerability to disasters and shouldg|snorate on the difficulties they have encountered and how these ca
prompt action. _ _be overcome. SBSTA Chair Chow said the issues were still under

Delegates observed a moment of silence for the recent tragediggsatission in the designated contact groups.
the request of INDONESIA. He also proposed that the Secretarial e chair of AG13, Patrick Széll, presented the draft decision on
draft a statement of sympathy for the affected countries. The Presigeniilateral Consultative Process (FCCC/CP/1998/L.3). He
reported that Antigua and Barbuda ratified the Kyoto Protocol on 3rgported that Parties had accepted the thrust of the proposal. The Ch
November. adopted the decision and said she would hold intersessional meetinc

REPORT OF THE SUBSIDIARY BODIES to tackle outstanding issues. .
SBSTA Chair Kok Kee Chow reported that SBSTA had completed The CBD Secretariat highlighted the linkages between the desert
initial consideration of all its sub-items. On development and transfi@tion, biodiversity and climate change conventions and the
of technology, he said a contact group had met once and would mé&mmon concern of sustainable development underlying their agend
again. Deliberations on research and systematic observation have€ spoke of CBD decisions that emphasized cooperation between t
progressed rapidly. On the proposal from Brazil, he said draft condiflevant Secretariats, in particular regarding management of informa
sions would be forthcoming on Monday. On land use change and ton from Parties, provided to fulfil their commitments under the
forestry, he reported that the contact group Co-Chairs were draftin§@nventions. The Secretariat said it was ready to act on areas of
decision. Consultations are ongoing on the impact of single projecEommon and shared interest. _
emissions in the commitment period and are nearing conclusions. OnPresident Alsogaray introduced Item 7C, which were statements
review of AlJ, the Chair said the informal consultations were makirfgom international government organizations. Hama Arba Diallo,
good progress. On Protocol mechanisms, a joint contact group hag&xecutive Secretary of the UN Convention to Combat Desertification
held an initial meeting to exchange views and will meet again. ~ (CCD), spoke of the Argentine interest and commitment to CCD. He
SBI Chair Bakary Kante reported that all items referred to SBI H¢pgested that the CCD and the FCCC were related because of theil
been considered. Contact groups are considering budgetary issuggstitutional arrangements and their commitment to the principles of
national communications from Annex | Parties, initial communica- SUstainable development. He indicated that there should be a conve

tions from non-Annex | Parties and the second review of adequacyd§fce Of the Rio secretariats to work together for common goals.

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulleti® <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Chad Carpenter LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Angela Churie <churie@I.kth.se>| Victol
Kellett <vkellett@iisd.ca>, Greg Picker <gregpicker@hotmail.com>, Lavanya Rajamani LL.M. <Irajamani@hotmail.com>. The Riitoelia Chasek, Ph.D.
<pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor is Langston James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The WWW Content Editor is Petpfddrear@ecology.u-net.com> and
WWW design by Andrei Henry <ahenry@iisd.ca>. Digital photos by Leila Mead <leila@interport.net>. Digital engineering byBeaickBavid @virtualstockholm.net> and
Chris Spence <spencechris@hotmail.com>. Logistics by Molly Rosenman <mrosenman@iisd.ca>. French translation by Mongi GadgpGiadidum@enb.intl.tn>. The
Sustaining Donors of tHgulletinare the Netherlands Ministry for Development Cooperation, the Government of Canada (through CIDA) and the United Stdi&sS&iug
General Support for tHaulletinduring 1998 is provided by the United Kingdom Department for International Development (DFID), the German Federal Minigitigrohent
(BMU), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Swiss Office for Environment, Forests and Landscape, the European Céb@)tythe Ministries of Environment and
Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Finland, the Ministries of Foreign AffaiEsn@nadnment of Norway, the United Nations
Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and the Ministry for the Environment in Iceland. SpeeifiltcsENB coverage of COP-4 is
provided by Germany’s GTZ and the UNFCCC SecretariatBliiletin can be contacted in Buenos Aires at (15) 170-7613, by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and fax: +1-2{12-64
0206. IISD can be contacted at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada. The opinionsekpiestbdiegotiations Bulletiare those|
of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11ISD and other funders. Excerpts Earththiegotiations Bulletimay be used in non-commercial publications only
and only with appropriate academic citation. Electronic versions &uletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists <http://iisd.ca/enb/email.asp> and full multimedia coverage o
COP-4 can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/climate/ba/.




Earth Negotiations Bulletin
Monday, 9 November 1998 Ry ... Vol. 12 No. 92 Page 2

William Kennedy, Senior Officer for the European Bank for EU proposals. Further functions or features would be determined as
Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), described activities, sutle process develops. The US reiterated its view on market based te
as developing innovative financial mechanisms and supporting thenology transfer, noting that the Kyoto Protocol places technology
shift to market economy, undertaken in countries with economies itransfer and the market at the core of the deliberations. Co-Chair Chr
transition, while considering the implications to the environment ansliggested the “cat,” as the process was referred to, could represent
climate change. Prodipto Ghosh, Senior Environment Specialist fr@onsultation and capacity, access and advice on barrier removals an
the Asian Development Bank, discussed the support provided to Gid@&nology transfer. She cautioned against duplication of ongoing
abatement projects in the Asia-Pacific region. These included: activities, such as the preparation of the IPCC Special Report on Me
supporting national initiatives, encouraging energy efficiency and odological and Technical Issues in Technology Transfer. The PHILIP
renewable energy projects, preparing reports on national circum- PINES questioned the need for further material compilations and sai
stances (ALGAS reports) and supporting the development of natioalihough market based transfer exists, it was not effective and requir
communications in 11 countries. The Chief of the Environmental Divirther measures. The Co-Chair proposed that the Secretariat integr
sion of the Inter-American Development Bank, Walter Arensberg, the three proposals. The delegates discussed the new draft at lengtt
presented information on four themes to help countries in Latin ~ and made significant progress. On Saturday evening, the meeting
America and the Caribbean meet the challenges of climate changeadjourned to allow further consultations on the outstanding issues
These included: assisting the enhancement of relevant institutionsrelating to what to call the process.
expanding the market for sustainable energy to fit new mechanisms, The contact group on FCCC Article 4.2 (a) and (b) (review of
providing financial and technical assistance to carry out global protggequacy of commitments), co-chaired by Jennifer Irish (Canada) ar
tion programs, and suggesting regulatory and institutional reforms fg&rgaret Mukahanana (Zimbabwe), met over the weekend. A discus
the private sector. sion of four draft proposals, presented by AUSTRALIA, the EU, G-
CONTACT GROUPS 77/CHINA and the US, dominated discussion. Debate concerned

h he i ial hani hai hr{Jrocedural issues on how to address the texts, with the G-77/CHINA
The contact group on the financial mechanism, chaired by Johr|ngicating its reluctance to consider a compilation text prepared by tt

Ashe (Antigua and Barbuda) and Dan Reifsnyder (US), met to disc885schajrs. After extensive debate, the G-77/CHINA proposed, with
additional guidance to and status of the Global Environmental Facff¥ £y and NEW ZEALAND. a reworked text as a negotiating docu-
(GEF). The group first discussed a draft decision presented by the Gzant The US, with the even’tual support of G-77/CHINA, rejected th
77ICHINA (FCCC/CP/1998/MISC.3/Add.1). While the EU Suloloorte'g)mpilation document and called on the four draft decisions,Jto be
the overall framework of the G-77/China draft decision, with the Uy esented in their entirety to the SBI. The Parties justified the cautiot
he said it should not include funding for stage Il and Il processes. gnnroach, citing this issue’s crucial importance to national positions.
AUSTRALIA indicated that he might support stage Il efforts now anghyiNA said he interpreted the US and AUSTRALIA proposals as an
stage lll. o . attempt to exact commitments from developing countries. The US ar
The US tabled a draft decision that focused on: improvements g{USTRALIA noted that the scientific and technical evaluation from
the operational level of the GEF; resolving the status of and guidangg |PCC indicated that developed country actions would be insuffi-
to the GEF in one draft decision; and GEF support programs to assifént to meet the aims of the Convention, and the US incorporated th
developing countries in altering their policy and legal frameworks ifinto its submission. The meeting ended without clear resolution abot
support of technology transfer. The G-77/CHINA said this proposakthe report the Co-Chairs should present to the SBI.
did not adequately meet the needs of developing country Parties. A The contact group on national communications from Annex |

smaller informal group will meet to draft a decision for the contact paties, chaired by Mohamed Ould El Ghaouth (Mauritania) and Ale:
group to consider at their next meeting. _ _ ander Metalnikov (Russian Federation), met over the weekend and
The joint contact group on mechanisms, chaired by Luiz Gylvarformulated a draft decision. It proposed that the third national comm
Meira Filho (Brazil) and Yvo de Boer (Netherlands) met on Friday tejcations from Annex | Parties be due in 2001 and that subsequent
discuss a work programme prepared by the Co-Chairs. The G-77/ national communications be due every 3 to 5 years. The decision
CHINA stressed the need for a clear section devoted to the nature gfdlided a statement on the need for further efforts by Parties to
scope of the mechanisms to facilitate comparison. He added that th@prove completeness, consistency and comparability of data and
mechanisms should not exacerbate the economic disadvantage ofinformation, as well as participating, through the SBI, in evaluating
certain countries, and called for the CDM to be discussed on a priogf refining the review process. It proposed that the Secretariat
basis. HONDURAS, supported by several Latin American countrieggmplete a feasibility study on the potential usefulness of data comp:

suggested expeditious creation of the CDM, calling for an “interim json and report on information contained in annual national inventory
phase approach” to develop guidelines and rules. The US stressedsbmissions.

parallel progress on all mechanisms. The EU preferred a general,

rather than a detailed, debate. NEW ZEALAND stressed the impor-
tance of developing a timeline for discussion. Several Parties THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

expressed concern about the length of the draft work programme. . CONTACT GROUPS: Contact groups will meet in morning and
SWITZERLAND provided the Chairs with a two-page work afternoon sessions. _
programme. The contact group met on Saturday to continue discussioffBSTA: SBSTA will meet in Plenary I at 3:00 pm.
on the work programme, with a much-shortened version prepared by
the Co-Chairs that included the Honduran “interim phase” proposal.
After some discussion, the Chair acknowledged differences in views
among the Parties, but said they were not incompatible. He suggested
the Parties conduct informal discussions and reconvene on Monday.
The contact group on technology met on Friday and Saturday to
discuss the proposals for a draft decision put forward by the US, EU
and G-77/China. The G-77/CHINA presented the principles of the
proposed technology transfer mechanism, drawing upon the US and



